

A meeting of the Board was held on Friday the 3rd day of November 1841

Present in the Chair P. White Esq.
other Guardians W. R. Farmer
G. R. Richards, J. Ponder, P. Whelan,
J. Byrne, J. Symonot, P. Murren,
J. O'Connor.

The Minutes of last meeting were read and signed

The Register Book was produced examined and authenticated from N^o. 799 to N^o. 804, both inclusive by the signature of the Chairman and the countersignature of the Clerk

The Clerk's report on the execution of orders previously made by the Board was read to the following effect: advertised for tenders for the different articles ordered by resolution of last Board's meeting.

The Treasurer Book of receipts and payment was produced by which it appeared that there had been received during the Week £3.2.10 paid during the Week 5.0.0 and that the Balance on the account against the Guardians was £275.8.10 the Book was signed by the Chairman as

The Clerk's account of petty Disbursements made by him since last meeting amounting to £2.16.10 was produced & passed.

The Collectors Books were produced & examined by which it appeared that there had been collected and paid to the Treasurer in respect of the several divisions of the Union since the last meeting and that there remained uncollected in the said Electoral Divisions respecting the sums specified as follows

Unpaid ^{Unpaid} Unpaid ^{Unpaid}	
Ennisorthy	Collectors Paid £3.2.10
Ballyhogue	
Killan	
Killegary	
Edermine	3.10.3
Ballyhughard	11.12.1
Castle Ellis	26.4.6
Meelagh	12.17.10
Ferns	49.1.4
Killeshock	35.0.8
Kilbrannigan	6.14.3

N. J. Barron
 Lemples Dambo.
 Monart } ~~Not produced~~

The following Books were exhibited by the Clerk he having first ascertained the accuracy of the entries made therein by the Master of the Workhouse and authenticated the same by his signature.

- 1 The Weekly Relief List & Abstract
 - 2 The Provision Check Account
 - 3 The Provision Receipt & Consumption of
- by which it appeared that the Cost of provisions and necessaries received during the week was $\pounds 44.10.9\frac{1}{2}$
- Debit Provision account }
 Credit Invoice account } $\pounds 44.10.9\frac{1}{2}$
- The Cost of Provisions
- The Cost of provisions and necessaries received during the week was $\pounds 24.8.3\frac{1}{4}$
- Debit Maintenance account }
 Credit Provision account } $\pounds 24.8.3\frac{1}{4}$
- and the average cost of a Pauper for the Week was $\pounds 1.8$

The Masters estimate of Provisions & necessaries required for the ensuing week was examined and orders were duly made for the several articles & specified namely

Bread 332 lbs Buttermilk 94 qts
 Meat 86 lbs Sweetmilk 747 qts
 Potatoes 5040 lbs Wine 3 Bottles
 Oatmeal 1120 lbs Candles 12 lbs

~~Firewood 24 Bundles
 Salt 112 lbs
 Soap 112 lbs
 Sugar 32 lbs
 Eggs 10 doz~~

Bread 532 lbs Eggs 10 doz
 Meat 96 lbs Candles 24 lbs
 Potatoes 3696 lbs Lucifers Matches 24
 Buttermilk 94 qts
 Sweetmilk 756 qts

The following books were also produced by the Clerk their accuracy having been previously ascertained by him and authenticated by his signature

~~1 The several Clothing~~
 2 The Medical Officers Books.

On the Report and recommendation of the Finance Committee the following Bills having been duly examined and found to be correct and in accordance with the several orders were directed to be paid and cheques for the several amounts were duly drawn on the Treasurer and signed. Namely.

1 Clothing account
 Edgely flax 1.19.8
 Straw £1-0-0
 Mushin 2.6
 Leather de pairs to J. Redmond 3.16.8

2 Establishment
 Slaters repairs 6.0
 Carriage of Water 4/- Brooms 2/3 6.3
 Schoolmistress 2/11 2.11
 Blacklead 3/4. freestone 3/9 7.4

Debit Establishment & Credit
 Treasurer with the several sums as
 above

3 Invoice Account
 Oatmeal to Mr. Keoghler 2. 15.4
 Buttermilk to G. Symon 15.0.0
 Sweetmilk to J. Farrell 10.0.0
 C. & B. Bread to C. Cooper 15.15.0
 Sweetmilk to H. Roche 13.0.0
 Ditto .. Meating 10.0.0
 Eggs 11/1 Firewood 1/- 12.1

Debit Invoice account and Credit
 Treasurer with the several sums
 as above.

The Report of the visiting Committee
 was read and orders made thereon
 as follows

That in visiting the
 House they found some irregularities
 with regard to the want of strict
 Separation between the different Wards.
 The Master was called up and
 ordered to be particular in locking
 all the doors regularly at all periods
 unless when business required them

being open. That no person from the Hospital shall
 have access to other parts of the house unless when specially
 sent by any officer of the House.

The reports of the Master and other
 officers were read and orders made
 thereon as follows

The Master reported that Bridget
 Allen a pauper No. 703 Escaped over
 the yard wall on Wednesday night
 last. He gave information of the fact
 at the Police Office and she was
 apprehended the same night and
 lodged in the Bridewell. The
 Board ordered that she be brought
 before the Bench of Magistrates
 on Thursday next at Petty Sessions.
 A communication was recd. from
 the Treasurer stating that he wanted
 advance 100/- in addition to that already
 advanced him.
 The following letters from the Poor
 Law Commissioners were read
 by the Clerk

One from the Auditor Mr. Hanrahan
~~stating~~ giving general instructions
 as to the keeping of the Union
 Accounts

Provisional admissions into the
Workhouse and application for
admissions were considered and
decided on as set forth in the
Application and Report Book.
The number of provisional admissions
confirmed was - 1

ditto disallowed None

The number of Applicants
admitted was 13

ditto rejected 3

Mr. R. Farmer Esq gave notice of
for next day of meeting that he
will submit A resolution for the
consideration of the Board for the
appointment of A school committee.

Mr. J. Symonds moved that the
Pauper Dinah Little be discharged
off the Division of Ballyhughard
and admitted on the division of
Kilcornuck which was seconded by Mr. M.
Richards and passed unanimously.

Mr. J. Pounder moved & Mr. Richards
seconded

That the Societies of Mr. Darby
Nolan be proceeded against
at Law by Mr. Donovan on the
Part of the Board as the Board
are of opinion that said Darby
Nolan has not made fair
exertions for the purpose of
collecting the Poor Rates outstanding
in his Collection.

Bond of said Darby Nolan and
his Societies be handed over by the
Clerk to Mr. Donovan for
that purpose - unanimously
agreed to.

The Matron asked for 2 Mops,
Spindles for Woollen Wheels which
were granted ordered

The Master asked for Handles
on 3 common fire shovels
1 doz Black Earthen Chambers
1 doz Brick Scrubs for cleaning yards
2 flasks Oil
1 Memorandum Book
1 small bottle Ink
2 quire Writing paper
6 worth India Rubber
which were severally ordered.

Several objections to present rates
of valuation ^{of their holdings} by parties were
referred ^{by the Board} for the purpose of revising
the valuation ^{of their holdings} to the Review

The Clerk stated the necessity
of placing A proper frame
under the desk in his office
4 feet to the wall which was ordered to be done.
A cheque for £5 for the purpose of
making Petty Cash payments was
given to him.

~~Mr. F. Pounder moved which was
unanimously agreed to, That the
under mentioned sums be paid to the
Persons respectively as under Same are
much more having been due there
previously to the half year just closed
29th Sep^r with the exception of
H. Roche whose ac at that period amounted
to but £10.16.0. And
Gard Symot~~

The several cheques which were given
on the Treasurer as ^{stated} mentioned in
the foregoing Clothing Establishment
& Invoice Accounts were given on
account of bills due on the 29th
of September last. with the exception of
part of the sum given to H. Roche amounting to £2.10.0

After the Chairman signed the
necessary orders & cheques as decided on
by the Board the meeting adjourned
to Friday 10th of November 1843 at
10 o'clock A.M.

Signed

A Meeting of the Board was held
on Friday 10th November 1843. >

Present in the Chair R. H. L. Lord Carey
Other Guardians R. S. Carey, J. A. Whitney,
C. B. Cookman, J. Ralph, Murphy Symot
C. Fumble P. Phelan W. R. Farmer
Capt. Nunn, J. Goff P. Rourke J. Hore
J. Connors.

The Minutes of last meeting were read
and signed.

The Register Book was produced examined
and Authenticated from N^o. 805 to
N^o. 818 both inclusive by the signature
of the Chair man and Counter signa-
ture of the clerk

Consequently the Finance
Committee had no check
Mr. Contractors Mill. Nolan Collector to Mr. Donnan
were proper order from the order book
Book were not in existence
The Clerk's report on the execution
of orders previously made by the
Board was read to the following effect
Handed over the Board of said Darby
Solicitor with instructions from the
Board to proceed thereto. Forwarded
the Revisor Copies of rate payers
and that the objections to present valuation of their
holdings. He also reports that since
Collectors have the opening of this Workhouse it had not
never been with been made a rule that Invoices should
be sent in with the Goods when coming in
to the Workhouse
inaccurate & though the Master kept private accounts
without return of the respective value of each division
of the goods & carrying on. Consequently the
Board of the greater part
of the Committee have not compared the Invoices
with the bills sent in by the Master & insist
on the order book & accounts

The Treasurer Books receipts & payments was produced by which it appeared that there had been received during the week 13.10.0 & paid during the week 44.6.8 and the Balance against the Guardians was £339.5.6

The Clerk's account of petty disbursements made by him since last meeting amounting to £3.19.0 was produced and passed.

The Collectors Books were produced and examined by which it appeared that there had been collected and paid to the Treasurer in respect of the several Electoral Divisions of the Union since the last meeting. And that there remains uncollected in the said Electoral Divisions. Respectively the sums specified, as follows:

Name of Collector	Name of Electoral Division	Collected	Remaining uncollected
Emmiscothy		7.0.0	
Ballyhoge			
Killan			
Killegney			
Ederville			
Ballyhugh			
East to Ellis			
Meelagh			

At the Collectors have ascertained that their returns differ from the last returns by £4.6.7 1/2

Terms
Kilrush
Kilcornock
Kilcornock
Templeshambo
Monast

Refuse the clerk
Refuse making
entry from
the books

Debit the Treasurer and Credit the several Electoral Divisions with the respective amounts above stated.

The following Books were exhibited by the Clerk he having first ascertained the accuracy of the entries made therein by the Master of the work house and authenticated the same by his signature.

- 1 The Weekly Relief List & abstract
- 2 The Provision check account
- 3 The Provision Receipt & consumption a/c

by which it appeared that the cost of provisions & necessaries received during the week was £19.9.8

Debit Provision account } 19.9.8
Credit Invoice account }
The cost of Provisions and necessaries consumed was £25.17.6
Credit Provision account } 25.17.6
Debit Maintenance a/c }
The average cost of a paper for the week was 1.9 1/4

The Master estimate of provisions and necessaries required for the ensuing week was examined and orders were duly made for the several articles specified: namely:

Bread 552	{	Salt 112
Meat 98		Tea 1 lb
Potatoes 8330		Sugar 3 1/2 lbs
Oatmeal 1120		Eggs 10 doz
Buttermilk 968		Milkwood 24 Bunds
Sweetmilk 789		Candles 12 lbs
		4 pints Whiskey

The following Books were also produced by the Clerk their accuracy having been previously ascertained by him and authenticated by his signature.

- 1 The several clothing accounts
- 2 The Medical Officers Books

On the Report and recommendation of the Finance Committee the following Bills having been duly examined and found to be correct and in accordance with the several orders were directed to be paid and cheques for the several amounts were duly drawn on the Treasurer and signed having 1 clothing account

Nil

2 Establishment account

Schoolmistress Committee Meeting Rates	2.11
Burns Church do	11.0
Cash on a/c work at diso trap	1.0.0
paid Labourer at home	1.3
oil paper do	4.9

Debit Establishment and Credit Treasurer with the respective sums above stated.

3 Invoice account

tea sugar & Whiskey	11.7.0	} 1.11.8.
Eggs paid for	4.5.1	
		7.5

Debit Invoice account and Credit Treasurer with the several sums as above.

The Report of the ^{Master & other Officers} visiting Committee was read and orders were made thereon as follows. The Master

The Protestant reports that the well of the pump Chaplain sent his again failed in giving water in report. On Wednesday evening all was concerning the pump up and this morning (10th) schools, which there were 6 feet of water and the pump would not send any up. I left word with the Contractor to call up the treats of the Board to relieve him from purchasing eggs as he has to go loss through them going to Market. The Contractor has not sent in paving stones. The door to Womers and requires to be done soon as possible, the Repairing in going to the dining hall from 9.45 in roof.

The following letters from the Poor Law Commissioners and others were read and directions given to answer them respectively to the following effect (or orders made on them respectively as follows.)

One from the Poor L. Comm^r stating the illegality of changing Paupers on the Registry ~~as to their chargeability~~ ^{or from one division to another} or to the Union at Large ~~by the~~ ^{that} any pauper readmitted within 6 months after being discharged must be charged in the same way as ^{he or} she was prior to ^{his or} her discharge also enclosing ^{a copy of} the opinion to that effect of the Solicitor General. Another confirming the advance of the Shoemakers salary to 1st p^r month another giving A statement of Mr Hancock's report on the Audit of the Union apts and recommending the employment. A certain line to be pursued for their thorough adjustment. The Chairman wrote to Mr. Mugggeridge requesting his attendance on next Board day to advise with the Board on the matter.

Provisional admissions into the Workhouse and applications for admissions were considered and decided on by the Board as set forth in the applications and Report Book. The number of provisional admissions confirmed was 2
Ditto disallowed None
The number of Applicants admitted was 2
Ditto Rejected ~~2~~

The Master asked for ^{an order for} 7 yds. Shroudings Calico and A Coffin for ^{the deceased pauper} Shavanagh which were ~~ordered~~ was given to him.

The Matron asked for one stone of Wool. A piece of flannel to make waistcoats ordered by the Doctor for several of the old Men & Women & inside Petticoats for Women. which were ordered

Ordered that the Clerk do advertise for ^{tenders for} 100 heads, floor cloths & materials for some Bed sheets & straw

The Taylor asked for 2 lb of 3 grade Common Bone studs 1/2 lb of 2 grade needles & the Shoemaker asked for 1 pair of Belly insole Leather of ^{Russian} 1/2 lb of 2 grade all which were all severally ordered

ordered that the Master be directed to take up all the stockings which have been knit in the range and supply the children with as many ^{of them} as there are shoes for and that the shoemaker be directed to work another week on a similar agreement as in the last order.

W. R. Farmer proposed which was ~~unanimously agreed to~~ the following as Members of a School Committee

Chas. C. Cookman

Chas. H. Hill

Step^r Goff

Pat^r White

W. R. Farmer

E. Trumble

O. Phelan

P. O'Rourke

G. Richards ^{by same being Sec.}
^{by C. C. Cookman Esq. proposed}

The tender of Mr. Kennedy to supply ~~thread~~ needles tapes Combs &c at specific prices - was accepted of.

Mr. Donovan Solicitor having attended ~~conferred~~ I recommended to the Board a more summary way of proceeding offproceeding ~~than this~~ against Darby Nolan Collector than they had directed it was ordered that

Moved by Chas. C. Cookman Sec.
by Mr. Goff

with the assistance of Mr. Donovan be directed to prepare the necessary ^{official} order to be served on Darby Nolan ~~one of our~~ ^{rate} collectors for the purpose of compelling him to collect in the arrears due ~~to~~ his Collection.

Several revisions of valuation were ordered by the recommen-
-dation of Mich^d Donovan Collector.

*
After the Chairman signed the necessary orders and cheques as decided on by the Board the Meeting adjourned to Friday the 17th day of November 1843 - at 11 o'clock Am.

C. Kennedy
Clerk.

(R. G. O.)

*
Moved by Chas. C. Cookman Esq. seconded by Mr. Goff Esq. proposed That Eight Seven pair of sheets be procured the first supply to be made from the linen ^{got up} ~~belonging to the~~ ^{by the} ~~Institution~~ Workhouse and ~~afterwards~~ ^{to be made} contract for the remainder of the supply.

At a meeting of the Board of
Guardians held on Friday the
17th of November 1843

Present in the Chair Right W.^t Grover
other Guardians present G.R. Nichols
Cap^t. Vernal. F. Burdick, J. Redmon
J. D. D. Bourke. J. Redmon
W. Ricarde. P. Whelan. A. Hoff,
H. Hornor, P. White, W. R. Farmer

The Assistant Comptroller
Mr. Muggenidge was in
attendance.

The Minutes of last meeting were read & signed.

The Register Book was produced
examined and authenticated from
N^o. 519 to N^o. 822 both inclusive, by
the signature of the Chairman
and the countersignature of
the Clerk.

The Clerks report on the execution of orders previously made by the Board was read to the following effect. advertised for tenders for the several articles as ordered by ~~resolution~~ Communicated to the Revisor several objections as forder at last meeting of Board.

The Treasurers book of receipts, and payments was produced by which it appeared that there had been received during the week. 56¹/₁₁ 17⁰/₁₀
Paid during the week No payment
and that the Balance on the ac-
^{against} ~~count~~ of the Guardians was £282⁸/₁₀ 6
The Book was signed by the Chairman

The clerk's account of Petty disbursements made by him since last meeting amounting to £2.15¹/₂ was produced and passed.

The Collector Books were produced and examined by which it appears that there had been collected and paid to the Treasurer in respect of the said Electoral Divisions of the Union since the last meeting and that there remained uncollected in the said Electoral Divisions respectively the sums specified as follows:

Name	Electoral	Collected	Remaining
Collector	Division	Paid	Uncollected
M. Doran	Crinisworthy	2.. 0. 0	
	Ballyhogue	7.. 3 1/2	
	Killane	7.. 2 1/4	
	Killegruy	2.. 5 1/4	
	Ederville		
Mc Warren	Ballyhuskard		
	Castle Ellis		
	Meethrough		

Electors ~~of~~ Returns Book
 weekly returns Book
 under the same date
 as the meeting

Collectors ~~of~~
Necessity Returns Book
to include the same state
of our meeting

No correct D No Lar { Terns 26.0.0
 Books of { Kilrush 22.0.0
 Collectors to take { Kilcormack 2.0.0
 Entries from Mr. Doyle { Newtownberry
 { Templehanbo 4.0.0
 { Monart

Debit the Treasurer and Credit the several electoral Divisions with the respective Amounts above stated.

The following Books were exhibited by the Clerk, he having first ascertained the accuracy of the entries made therein by the Master of the Workhouse and Authenticated the same by his signature.

- 1 The Weekly Relief list and abstract
- 2 The Provision Check Account
- 3 The Provision Receipt & Consumption of which it appeared that the cost of provisions and necessaries received during the Week was.

L 31 H 0 0

Debit Provision Account {
 Credit Invoice Account { 31.10.0
 The Cost of provisions and
 necessaries consumed was 26.18.9 3/4
 debit Maintenance Account {
 Credit Provision Account { 26.18.9 3/4
 And the average cost of a
 Pauper for the Week was 1.9 3/4

The Masters estimate of Provisions and necessaries required for the ensuing week was ~~the same~~ and orders were duly made for the several ^{articles} ~~orders~~ specified namely

Bread 624^{lb} Whiskey 4 Pints
 Meat 95^{lb} 48 Bundles Firewood
 Potatoes 742^{lb} 12^{lb} dipst Candles
 Buttermilk 928^{lb} 3^{lb} Mould do
 Sweetmilk 804 Soap 112^{lb}

The following Books were also produced by the Clerk, their accuracy having been previously ascertained by him and Authenticated by his signature.

- 1 The several Clothing Accounts
- 2 The Medical Officers Books.

On the report and recommendation of the Finance Committee the following Bills having been duly examined and found to be correct and in accordance with the several orders were directed to be paid and cheques for the several amounts were duly drawn on the Treasurer and signed: Namely:

1 Clothing Account

Wool 0.15.0
 Carding of same 2.11 1/2
 Bleaching of Linen 13.1

2 Establishment
 Matron Bal Salary to 45 Sep 45 45.00
 12 Chambers 4.00
 Carriage of Water 7.00
 Schoolmistress - Commuter's meat rations - 2.11
 Glazing paid for 1.15.10
 Martha Rock Threemaker 1.4.0

3 Invoice Account
 Sweetmilk a/c W. Farrell 10.0.0
 do Heating - 5.0.0
 Eggs 7.2
 Firewood 3.0
 Cooper on a/c Bros a/c 10.0.0
 Kelly on a/c oatmeal 10.0.0
 Buttermilk account G. Hyatt 10.0.0
 Sweetmilk a/c Brooke 5.0.0
 The report of the visiting committee was
 read and orders were made thereon as
 follows

The report of the Master & other
 officers were read & orders &c
~~made thereon~~

Matron reports there is no straw
 & has no ^{in readiness} Petticoats if Paupers be
 admitted as there is no straw are not
 marked in consequence of having no
 marking ink, there is nothing done
 yet at the Women's door going into
 the yard it is impossible to keep
 the Place clean until it be
 done

The following letters from the P.L.
 Commissioners and others were read
 by the clerk and directions given to
 answer them respectively to the following
 effect (or orders made on them
 respectively: as follows:)
 One from the P.L. Commissioning
 stating that Mr. Cleary should be
 placed (as he is) on the Union at
 Large, Another from same containing
 instructions how the Bros should proceed
 in a summary way at law to compel
 and one from Mr. D. J. ^{recommending} exactly they should make
 the collectors to do their duty - One
 from Mr. Hancock Auditor stating
 the ^{principal} defects of the Union Accounts
 to be in the Ledger the collectors Books
 and the Fast of the Treasurer never
 having kept an account ^{which} distin-
 -guished the amount paid on each
 Electoral division, and on enquiring
 such turns out to be still going on
 up to the present day.

Provisional admissions into the
 Workhouse and applications
 for admissions were considered
 and decided on as set forth in
 the application and Report
 Book.

The number of Provisional
 admissions confirmed was 1
 ditto disallowed none
 The number of Applicants
 admitted was 10
 ditto Rejected 2

Orders that the clerk do adver-
-tise for tenders for 2000 3000 and
of Linen to make shifts, Hibs
for the School Girls, for straw,
Wool, Buff Whetton that he write
to the Clerk of one of the Dublin living engraving
in Marking, july can be purchased.
Proposed by Mr. Croft
Sec^y by Mr. J. P. O'Keefe Hoap
That in future each Pauper
taking admission ^{into the Hospital} shall
produce A certificate from the
Clergyman or some other Person
of the Union or Division in which
he ^{is} may claim admission.

Matron asked for 30 gal. S. Tea-
-stone & 4 stone flour which
were ordered.

orders that the clerk write to
Mr. Thorn (enclosing Cash) for 2 Copies
of the "Irish Poor Law" and pay
for same out of Petty Cash

The Matron asked for 2 white wash
Brushes, straw ~~brushes~~ in the House
5 yds shroud & Coffin for G. Glynn
2 pieces of Burdock and 1 for
those hammers & 1 doz Hacks
Brown

* Proposed by Mr. Farnier Sec^y
by Cap^t Venn ^{Pres^t} that Mr. Mug-
-bridge be requested to send a
Competent Person or a Medical

terms as he can procure him for,
to arrange the accounts in accor-
-= dence with the suggestions
in the Commissioners Letter of the
9th Nov - instant

orders that it being desirable
that the new Rate Collectors
Books should be prepared forth-
-with that the clerk be direc-
-ted to employ a scribe to
aid him in that duty at
an expense not exceeding
Five pounds -

The clerk receives an order for the
printing of 100 Notices to Vaccinate
200 Forms of Weekly returns to the
P.L. Commissioners & B Office
Files. also A cheque on Treasurer
for £6 petty Cash -

The P^r. Requests 1000 small
printed tickets (with 14 doz of time ^{Cases} to be taken at
~~the head of each Patient's Bed~~
prints the number name & age of
each Pauper receiving one of such
tickets to be filled in by Matron & notes
sent with each Patient to the Hosp^t
also A ~~dark~~ Materials for
Windows Curtains ^{of Hospital} ^{of same}
5 worth of Carrots ^{several} which were ordered

* The late clerk having been requested
by the Board to attend for the purpose

of giving ~~some~~ explanation with regard to the state of ~~the~~ the appt. kept by him during his period of office the P.S. Com^{rs} having called the Board He proposed that attention thereto. He attended and if the collector stated that ^{would} ~~the~~ maintain ^{that} ~~the~~ would first Accounts ^{as clerk were} correct in all ^{matters} ~~expend~~ give in true & ~~the~~ ~~considered~~ that the collectors have accurate return kept proper accounts ~~of~~ as of the Am^t. coll. to distinguish accurately the Amounts -lects on each page on each Electoral Division Electoral ^{nor was the requisite ever done so} in the Accounts kept by him Division. ^{as referred to} ~~the~~ matters ^{objected to} referred to by Mr. Hume would then in the P.S. Com^{rs} Letters were merely if Mr. Mugges ^{mode} ~~as to~~ ^{of} ~~form or mode~~ only -ridge would be ~~the~~ ^{portion of the} sums of money stated give two in the foregoing Minutes to have days to as it been paid to him with his advice, undertake to put the accounts into proper order. But Mr. Mugges were paid on acc of Bills due on the 29th Sep -ridge object- last. ting, that The Clerk exhibited the ^{Hospital} ~~the~~ Dietary Books and stated that from the ^{columns headed} ~~the~~ Fact of the Wards, ~~the~~ numbers in settled in two Registry, ^{having at any time} ~~not~~ being filled in, he could days it was ^{never} ~~not~~ accurately ascertain the proper classification of diets. The Assistant Commissioner reported to the ~~the~~ State But no Order was made thereon by the Board. Meeting adjourned to 24 Nov 43

- | | |
|------------|----------|
| H. Roche | (5) |
| J. Keating | (5) |
| J. Farrell | (10) |
| G. Symon | (10) |
| J. Kelly | (£10) |
| Matron | (£10/10) |

at a Meeting of the Board held on Friday the 24th November 1843

Present in the Chair P. White Esq
other Guardians present G. P. Richards
P. O'Rourke. M. Redmond. M. Whelan
J. Byrne. J. Connors. P. Whelan, E. Trumble
W. Roice, Murphy, J. Hore, L. Doyle
Captain Kume,

The minutes of the last meeting were read and signed.

The Register Book was produced examined and authenticated from No. 823 to 833 ~~both~~ both inclusive by the signature of the chairman and the countersignature of the clerk

The clerk's report on the execution of orders previously made by the Board was read to the following effect. executed the ~~different~~ Several orders of the Board given to him at last Meeting. Begs to call attention to the fact that the several sums of money for which cheques were given at last meeting were so ordered and given without the chairman of the Finance Committee or of the Board having affixed his signature to the several Bills, or the Bills having been compared with the order check Book.

The Treasurers Book of receipts and payments was produced by which it appeared that there had been received during the week £10" 0" 0 paid during the week 65" 9" 19 and that the Balance on the account against the Guardians was £337" 18" 4

The Book was signed by the Chairman

The Clerks account of Petty disbursements made by him since last meeting amounting to 3" 15" 8 was produced and passed.

The Collectors Books were produced and examined by which it appeared that there had been collected and paid to the Treasurer in respect of the several Electoral Divisions of the Union since the last meeting and that there remained uncollected in the said Electoral Divisions respectively the sums specified as follows.

M. Doran	{	Ennisceorthy	"	"	"	Collectors Books still in an improper state to make entries from
		Ballylonge	"	"	"	
		Killan	"	"	"	
		Killeeney	"	"	"	
		Ferns	5" 0" 0			
2	{	Kilrush	4" 0" 0			
		Kilcornock	1" 0" 0			
		Edermine				
1	{	Ballyhaskard				
		Castle Ellis				
		Meelnage				

Newtownbarry
Mr. Doyle
Templeshanks
Monart

Debit the Treasurer and credit the several Electoral Divisions with the Amounts above stated.

The following books were exhibited by the Clerk he having first ascertained the accuracy of the entries made therein by the Master of the Workhouse and authenticated the same by his signature.

- 1 The Weekly Relief List and abstract
- 2 The Provision Check Account
- 3 The Provision receipt and consumption account

by which it appeared that the cost of provisions and necessaries received during the week was £18" 4" 4 1/2

Debit Provision account

Credit Invoice account

The cost of provisions and necessaries consumed was 27" 2" 3 1/4

Debit Maintenance account

Credit Provision account

and the average cost of a Pauper for the week was 1" 9 3/4

The Masters estimate of Provisions and necessaries required for the ensuing week was examined and orders were duly made for the several articles specified namely

112 lb Bread	112 lb Salt
Meat 90 lb	Eggs 5 doz
Potatoes 420 lb	Candles 18 lb
Oatmeal 2240 lb	
Buttermilk 952 qt	
Sweetmilk 743 qt	

The following books were also produced by the clerk their accuracy having been previously ascertained by him and authenticated by his signature

- 1 The several clothing accounts
- 2 The Medical Officers Books

on the Report and recommendation of the Finance Committee the following bills having been duly examined and found to be correct and in accordance with the several orders were directed to be paid and cheques for the several amounts were duly drawn on the Treasurer and signed. namely

- 1 Clothing Account

- 2 Establishment Account

Carriage of Parcel	1.5
Schoolmistress (commuter meat ration)	2.11
Time paid for	10.5
Taylor 18/- Summons for Paupers	3/6 1.1.6
Carriage of Water	3.0
Francis Burke for School Books	1.16.11
John Greene printing & map	10.0.0

- 3 Invoice Account

Carrots for Hospital	5
----------------------	---

The reports of the Master and other Officers were read and orders made thereon as follows

Master reported that he had not as yet got any straw and had none though much wanted - ordered that advertisement ^{be put on} ~~be put on~~ the different country places of worship within 5 miles of Town.

The Pump must be cleaned in the bottom of all mud gravel & there ^{being} ~~is~~ 16 feet water in the well ~~it~~ ^{yet} it will not work

The following Letters from the Poor Law Commissioners and others were read by the Clerk and directed given to answer them respectively to the following effect (or orders made on them respectively as follows) one from the P.L. Comrs. stating that Annan fully qualified for arranging the ^{in accordance with the request of the Board} accounts of the Union would attend for that purpose in about ten days. Another from same giving Assentment of the Solicitor General's opinion with regard to the chargeability of paupers whereupon it was ordered by the Board that (according to that opinion) ~~that the paupers~~ ^{both} Mary Connors and child ~~having been illegals~~ ^{the Union at charge} removed from Killequay to Killequay and Dinah Little from ~~Ballyduff~~ ^{Ballyduff} to Ballyduff. ~~Michael McCormick~~ ^{the said pauper} to be reinstated on the ~~Division~~ ^{Division} referred to. Provisional admissions into the workhouse and applications for admissions were considered and decided on as set forth in the application and report Book. The number of provisional admissions confirmed was 2. Ditto disallowed None. The number of applicants admitted was 23. Ditto rejected. None.

Moved by Mr. L. Redmond and Seconded by Mr. Mc. Whelan That the Collector be directed to obtain ~~to furnish correct Lists of all~~ ^{to the Clerk} ~~such persons as are exempted~~ ^{by Law} such information as may enable him to state ^{in the} ~~what~~ ^{filling of the} New Rate Books what ~~persons~~ ^{persons} valued at £4 and under are exempted ^{through} the Late Act of Parliament from paying Poor Rates, and that the Collector shall receive from this Board reasonable compensation for their trouble in doing so.

The tender of Thomas Martin to supply Beef and Mutton for 6 months at 5 pds was accepted of.

The School Committee ^{having} recommended ^{that} the following ^{for the schools they were ordered to be} articles being obtained 40 table Books 200 Slate Pencils 24 brass pens 2 doz Carpenter Spelling Assistants 1 1/2 doz English Grammars (Davis) 50 shillings 100 different sized needles 2 Ivory combs 1 penny farthing of ink 1 doz first Book of Arithmetic (National School) 24 table Books 1 doz Geographies (small) 16 others from remaining Dictionary with key 100 quills ~~which were ordered~~.

Matron asked for 2th good
housewife thread 1 doz ap and
Bolo pieces of Good Black
tape for the school girls frocks
13 doz pieces of white frock tape
for the Bolls. A piece of Blue calico
at 2 3/4 p^{er} yard to line girls
frocks & men's then shifts. I
want Linen (10 yards) Band
and cannot get Bolls made
also Apiece of untitt I get p^{er} - also 12 yds
Bengal strip ^{springy duck} stuff for floor cloths which were
ordered.

The shoemaker asked for
1 hide light Butt 1 hide light
1000 hobnails 5000 clasp 2
2th hemp 2nd worth Pitch &
Resin, 12 And Blads. which
were ordered.

Matters ^{stated to be} connected with Omipion
in the former valuations were
referred to the Revisor ^{of the valuations} for Amend-
ment of same

~~Resolved~~ that A cheque ^{or treasury} for
£10 be given to Mr. Greene as
part payment of his a/c
due on the ^{24th March} 24th ~~last~~

The Clerk required a small
Balance for weighing letters
which was ordered on 3rd for
p^{er} 5 Cash ^{was} given to him

Made their report stating
The Clothing Committee set
the stock of clothing & Bedding
as taken by them from which it appears
that the deficiencies were so small
as to be unworthy of ~~any~~ attention
from the Board.

(After the Chairman signed
the orders and cheques as decided
on by the Board, the Meeting
adjourned to Friday 1st Dec 1843
at 11 o'clock a.m.

signed

A meeting of the Guardians was
held on Friday the 1st Dec 1843

Present in the Chair. P. White Esq
Other Guardians. S. Goff. E. C. Lockman
C. B. Hill. Capⁿ Trueme, W. Roice
J. Byrne, C. Frumple, W. Helan
W. Ricarde, Dr. Clarke, J. Hore
P. Whelan, Redmond,

The Minutes of last meeting were
read and signed.

The Register Book was produced
examined and authenticated
from N^o 834 to N^o 861 both inclusive
by the signature of the Chairman
and the countersignature of the
Clerk.

The clerks report on the execution of orders previously made by the Board was read to the following effect executed the orders of the Board given at last Meeting.

The Treasurers Book of receipt and payments was produced by which it appears that there had been received during the week paid during the week ^{£13.0.0} and that the Balance ^{against} of the Guardians was £350.48.14 the Book was signed by the Chairman

The clerks account of petty disbursements made by him since last Meeting amounting to £6.5.11½ was produced and passed

The Collectors Books were produced and examined by which it appeared that there had been collected and paid to the Treasurer in respect of the several Electoral Divisions of the Union since the last Meeting and that there remained uncollected in the said Electoral Divisions respectively the sums specified as follows—

Nothing collected since last Meeting and the collectors still have entries from

The following books were exhibited by the clerk he having first ascertained the accuracy of the entries made therein by the Master of the Workhouse and authenticated the same by his signature

1 The Weekly Relief List and abstract
2 The Provision Check account
3 The Provision receipt and consumption account by which it appears that the cost of provisions and receipts received during the week was £31.14.4½

Debit Provision a/c } 31.14.4½
Credit Issues a/c }

The cost of provisions and keep-
~~aries~~ ^{continued} during the week
 was £27.10.9

Debit Maintenance a/c } 27.10.9
 Credit Provision — a/c }
 and the average cost of a
 Pauper for the week was. 1. 9 1/4

The Master's estimate of provisions
 and keeparies required for the ensuing
 week was examined and orders
 were duly made for the several
 articles specified namely:

Bacon	696 lb	Tea	1 lb
Meat	93 lb	Sugar	3 1/2 lb
Potatoes	5390 lb	Eggs	4 doz
Buttermilk	1084 qt	Whiskey	4 pints
Sweetmilk	855 qt	Candles	18 lb
		Harsh	14 lb
		Blue	1 lb

The following Books were also
 produced by the Clerk their
 accuracy having been previously
 ascertained by him and au-
 -thenticated by his signature
 1 The General Clothing a/c
 2 The Medical Officers Book
 The Medical Officers refused to give to the
 Clerk for Examination & Exhibition to the
 Or the report and recommen-
 -dations of the Prisoner
 Committee the following

having been duly examined and
 found to be correct and in ac-
 -cordance with the several
 orders were directed to be paid
 and cheques for the several
 amounts were duly drawn
 on the Treasurer and signed
 namely:

1 Clothing Account
 Blea Calico J. Murphy 1. 4. 9
 Straw 17/8 1/2 Ditto 14/9 1. 12. 6

2 Establishment

Freestone 3. 9 Birch Scrubs 4. 5. 9
 Schoolmistress - committed meat ratios - 2. 11
 Carriage of Water 8. 0
 J. Kennedy for Brushes 10. 2
 Marking ink and Carriage 14. 4 1/2
 2 copies "Irish Poor Law" & Carriage 8. 8 1/2
 Carriage Reg for Doctor 1. 0
 Old Sacks 2. 4 1/2
 Cash to Clerk on a/c 10. 0. 0
 Carriage of parcel 9

Debit Establishment and
 Credit Treasurer with the
 several sums as above

3 Invoice Account

Tea by arrow hiskey
Eggs

11.4

3.4

Debit Invoice Account and
Credit Treasurer with the
several sums as above

The report of the Visiting
Committee was read.

The reports of the Master and
other Officers were read and
orders made thereon as follows

The Matron reported

The following letters from the
Prov. L. Commissioners and others
were read by the clerk and
directions given to answer them
respectively to the following
effect (Orders made on them

One from the P. L. Com^{rs} stating that certain
queries of the clerk as to the keeping of
Union accounts were referred to the
Apt. Com^{rs} in charge to be replied to.

One from Mr. Muggenidge stating that
he would ^{upon the first opportunity} personally instruct the
clerk ^{refer} upon the matters contained in the
letter to the P. L. Com^{rs} first mentioned letter

and stating ^{in return} replied to some queries
that the clerk should put the
name of the immediate Lepor
in the Rate Books in all doubtful
cases another from the Com^{rs} stating that

the Guardians could not make it im-
- rative upon upon A Pauper seeking admission
- to produce a certificate of ~~the~~ ^{the} ~~clerk~~ ^{clerk} or letter ~~from~~ ^{from} the ~~clerk~~ ^{clerk}

Provisional admissions into
the workhouse and applica-
- tion for a admissions were
consulted and decided on
as set forth in the application
and Report Book

The number of Provisional
admissions confirmed was 2.

Ditto disallowed none

The number of Applicants
admitted was 6

ditto rejected none

Mr. Byrne handed the clerk the following
I ^{do hereby} give notice of motion
that I will on Friday the 15th
instant move for a Committee
for the purpose of ascertaining
the Rates on the different
divisions of this Union.

The Master asked for
1 keg of ^{marking} ~~marking~~ ^{iron} ~~iron~~ ^{spoons}
1 scrubbing brushes
100 Each Pint and quart Tins
200 Nets
16 ^{cents of straw} and 16 ^{cents of straw} of same
14th penny cord for tying scrubs
1 Handle in 2 Picks & 1 Sledge
which were ordered of A. Heg from Dublin
The Doctor asked for Stone Linseed Meal
for Hospital which was ordered.
ordered that the clerk issue adven-
tisements for 100 Bed ticks 3 size
vid
100 Bolsters to correspond
also about 200 yards home made
Flannel

The Shoemaker asked for
1 side light Butt
1 do do Hip
which were ordered.

Moved by Mr. V. Goff
Seconded by Chas. C. Cookman and
Resolved That the clerk do prepare
the Rate Books with all ^{expenses} ~~expenses~~
leaving the last columns blank
until further directions also that
he write to Muggers ^{to} ~~to~~ ^{be} ~~be~~ ^{paid}

request his attendance at this Board
on the next day of meeting.

Mr. Hore gave notice of having on
next Board day that it having
been a distinct agreement with the
Porter on entering his situation that
He should be furnished with a
suit of clothes yearly and such
not having been ever given to him
though now one year in place and
from ^{most marked good} his conduct and General
utility in every ^{manner} possible in the Estab-
lishment and it appearing that
He always keeps himself respectable
clad from his own resources
that this Board for these and various
other reasons highly favorable to the
character of the young man do
resolve to advance his Salary in
lieu of any clothes in future to
Fifteen pounds per annum.

A Committee was formed for the
purpose of taking stock of
Provisions in the House and to report
the same to the Board on next day
of meeting. The Committee to meet
at 10 o'clock on next Friday
for that purpose, and to consist
of the following gentlemen
C. C. Cookman P. Whelan
E. Trumble P. O. Rourke
J. Ponder

and that the Balance Against
the Guardians was 34 3 8 4
The Book was signed by the Chairman

The Clerk's account of petty disburse-
ments made by him since last
meeting amounting to £7 7 2
was produced and passed

The Collector's Books were produced
and examined by which it ap-
peared that there had been
collected and paid to the Treas-
urer in respect of the several
Electoral Divisions of the Union
since the last meeting and that
there remained uncollected in the
said Electoral Divisions respec-
tively the sums specified as follows

M. Doran { Enniscorthy
Ballyhogue
Killaw
Killegney

M. Warren { Edermine
Ballyhuskard
Castle Ellis
Meelnagh } 15 0 0

D. Nolan { Ferns
Riprush
Rifecormuck

M. Doyle { Newtownbary
Limplescombe
Monast } 17 10 0

The following Books were exhibited
by the Clerk he having first as-
certained the accuracy of the
entries made therein by the Master
of the Workhouse and authenti-
cated the same by his signature

- 1 The Weekly Relief List & abstract
- 2 The Provision check account
- 3 The Provision Receipt & Consumption

account.
by which it appeared that the
Cost of provisions and necessaries
received during the week was 2 12 0

Debit Provision account
Credit Invoice account
The Cost of provisions and necessaries
Consumed was

Debit Maintenance account
Credit Provision account
and the average cost of a
Pauper for the week was 1 9 2

The Masters estimate of Provisions
and necessaries required for the
ensuing week was examined
and orders were duly made for
the several articles specified
namely:

Bread 352 lb
Meat 81 lb
Potatoes 552 4 lb
Buttermilk 1152 qt
Sweetmilk 825 qt
Salt 112 lb
Randles 24 lb

The following books were also produced by the clerk their accuracy having been previously ascertained by him, and authenticated by his signature.

1 The several Clothing accounts
2 The Medical Officers Books
on the report and recommendation of the Finance Committee the following Bills having been duly examined and found to be correct and in accordance with the several orders of the were directed to be paid and cheques for the several amounts were duly drawn on the Treasurer and signed namely:

1 Clothing Account
Kilting flannel 21/8, Straws 23/3 £ 2.4.8
Carding of Wool 3.0
Bleaching Linen 13/8 13.8
J. Redmond for Leather Findings 2.0.0

Debit Provision Clothing a/c and Credit Treasurer with the several sums as above

2 Establishment Account
O'Brien for Paving 12/10. M. Roche Shoemaker 1.10.10
Ticket of Receipt 6/6 Schoofmeister committed meat ration 8.11
Postage 16 weeks 7/6 Carriage of water 1/- 8.7
Repairing Sins 3/6 and Carriage 5/6 9.0
Brooms 2/3 handles in hammers 2/- 4.3
Kenny for Tub 7/6 Scouring Brush 2/4 9.10
M. Roche Shoemaker 1 Mo Salary 1.0.0
Earnings 22 off of 3

Debit Establishment Account and Credit Treasurer with the several sums as above

3 Invoice Account
Eggs 2/8 Tea Sugar Whiskey 14.0
~~paid Carriage of parcel~~ 8
C. Cooper on a/c 10.0.0
Theating Smith 7.0.0

Debit Invoice account and Credit Treasurer with the several sums as above

The report of the Master and other Officers were read and orders made thereon as follows

None

The following ^{Letter from} ~~orders of~~ the Poor Law Commissioners were read by the clerk and directions given to answer them respectively to the following effect (or orders made on them respectively as follows):
one ^{from Poor Law Commissioners} to the clerk with regard to the ^{forwarding} ~~keeping~~ of the Minutes & the Medical Officers Books ^{copies of} another from same and referring to Mr. Muggridge for information ~~thereon~~ regarding the Medical Officers Books.

Pitto disallowed none

Pitto rejected

Last Meeting
it was

Copyright: Wexford County Archive

ordered that Racks be put up in
Boys and girls School rooms

Wide Light Butt

1. A. A. Kise

1 lbs hemp

103 Aairs

6th worth pitch & resin & grease

1000 Hob Nails

5000 class 2^d Nails

The Master got an order to get 1 Load Straw 12 2 Loads
of ^{Hay} 26 got same carried to the workhouse
The Master looked for orders to get
1 stone of wool carded.
A gallon Measure

30 gallons freestone

piece of Muslin for Borders for
Women & childrens Caps which were
ordered.

The clerk receives an order ~~for~~
~~the printing of~~ get
1 Rough Minute Book
1 Provision check and
Provision Receipt & Consumption
account
1000 Circulars to Guardians
500 advertising placards
A cheque for £7. 10. 0 for Petty cash
also given him.

Mr. J. Fore Moved and
M. C. B. Cookman Seconded That
for the several reasons given in the
notice of this Motion on this day week
the salary of George Maguire Porter
of this Workhouse be advanced to
Fifteen pounds per annum - He
finding himself in the clothing fitted
to his situation. Same was unani-
mously agreed to.

The Meeting adjourns to Friday
the 15th day of December 1843
At a Meeting of the Board held on
Friday the 15th Dec 1843

Present in the Chair P. White Esq
other Guardians. * Dr. V. Romke
C. H. Hill, J. A. Whitney, * J. Goff
J. Fore, J. Connors, W. Roice
J. Byrne. J. Redmond, N. Byrne
J. Symon. ~~W. Richard~~, E. Funnell
M. Whelan, W. Colleton.

Mr. Muggieridge was also present.

The Minutes of last Meeting were
read and signed

The Register Book was produced
examined and authenticated
from N. 870 to N. 894 ^{both inclusive} by the signature
of the Chairman and the Counter-
signature of the Clerk.

The Clerks report on the execution
of orders previously made by the
Board was read to the following
effect. executed the orders of the
Board given to him at last
Meeting.

The Treasurers Book of receipts
and payments was produced
by which it appeared that there had
been received during the week
paid during the week - £27.10.0,
and the balance against the
Guardians was £370.18.4
the Book was signed by the Chair-
man

The Clerks account of petty Dis-
bursements made by him since
last Meeting amounting to 2.9.10
was produced and passed.

The Collectors Books were produced
and examined by which it appeared
that there had been collected and paid
to the Treasurer in respect of the
several Electoral Divisions of the
Union since the last Meeting and
that there remains uncollected in
the said Electoral Divisions
respecting the sums specified as follows

Mr. J. Fore Moved and
M. G. B. Cookman Seconded That
for the several reasons given in the
Notice of this Motion on this day week
the Salary of George Maguire Porter
of this Workhouse be advanced to
Fifteen pounds per Annum - He
finding himself in the clothing fitted
to his situation. Same was unani-
-mously agreed to.

The Meeting adjourned to Friday
the 15th day of December 1843
At a Meeting of the Board held on
Friday the 15th Dec 1843

Present in the Chair P. White Esq
other Guardians. * Dr. O. Romke
C. H. Hill, J. A. Whitney, * J. Goff
J. Fore, J. Connors, W. Price
J. Byrne. J. Hedderon, N. Byrne
J. Symonds. ~~W. Richard~~, C. Trumble
M. Whelan, W. Collector.

Mr. Muggieridge was also present.

The Minutes of last Meeting were
read and signed

The Register Book was produced
examined and authenticated
from N. 870 to N. 894 ^{both inclusive} by the signature
of the Chairman into the Counter-
-signature of the Clerk.

The Clerks report on the execution
of orders previously made by the
Board was read to the following
effect. executed the orders of the
Board given to him at last
Meeting.

The Treasurers Book of receipts
and payments was produced
by which it appeared that there had
been received during the week -
paid during the week - £27.10.0,
and the Balance against the
Guardians was £370.18.4
the Book was signed by the Chair-
-man

The Clerks account of petty Dis-
-bursements made by him since
last Meeting amounting to 2.9.10
was produced and passed.

The Collectors Books were produced
and examined by which it appeared
that there had been collected and paid
to the Treasurer in respect of the
several Electoral Divisions of the
Union since the last Meeting and
that there remains uncollected in
the said Electoral Divisions
respecting the sums specified as follows

Collected	Collected	Overhead
484" 13" 8 1/2	Cerrisgorthy 3.3.4	15.3
173" 0" 7 1/2	Ballyhogue 10.7	3.0.3 1/4
114" 0" 8	Killan 2.0.8	4.12.7
151" 14" 11 1/2	Killegny 14.11 1/4	2.17.3
172" 18" 6 1/4	Ederville 1.18.6 1/4	1.70.6 1/2
99" 14" 0 1/4	Ballyhughan 14.0 1/4	9.8.6 1/2
204" 17" 7 1/4	Castle Ellis 6.17.7 1/4	2.15.11 1/2
102" 18" 10 1/4	Meelagh 3.18.10 1/4	3.18.9
238" 5" 6 1/2	Ferns 11.5.6 1/2	8.0.1
135" 11" 2 1/2	Pitmarsh 11.22.5	8.3.2
119" 4" 0 1/2	Kilcommock 4.0	2.12.2 1/2
102" 4" 2 1/4	Newtownbarry 0.14.2 1/4	5.0.8 1/2
213" 2" 6 1/2	Templeshambo 9.2.6 1/2	10.6.7 1/2
183" 15" 11 1/4	Monart 1.5.11 1/4	6.4.3 1/4
2546" 2" 5 1/4		85.6.2 1/4

The following Books were exhibited by the Clerk he having first ascertained the accuracy of the entries made therein by the Chairman Master of the Workhouse and authenticated the same by his signature

- 1 The Weekly Relief List and abstract
- 2 The Provision Check Account
- 3 The Provision Receipt and Consumption Account.

by which it appears that the cost of provisions and necessaries received during the week was 22.16.5

Debit Provision account }
Credit Invoice account } 22.16.5
The cost of provisions and necessaries consumed was £28.18.9

Debit Maintenance account }
Credit Provision account } 28.18.9

and the average cost of a Pauper for the week was 1.8 1/2

The Master's estimate of provisions and necessaries required for the ensuing week was examined and orders were duly made for the several articles specified. namely:

Bread 672^{lb} Sweetmilk 89^{lb}
Meat 80^{lb} Candles 30^{lb}
Potatoes 6524^{lb} Coals 20 Ton
Buttermilk 117^{lb} Wood 36 Bds
Oatmeal 2240^{lb} Soap 112
Washing Soda 7^{lb}

The following books were also produced by the Clerk their accuracy having been previously ascertained by him and authenticated by his signature

- 1 The several clothing accounts
- 2 The Medical Officers Books

on the report and recommendation of the Finance Committee the following bills having been duly examined and found to be correct and in accordance with the several orders were directed to be paid and cheques for the several amounts were duly drawn on the Treasurer and signed. namely:

1 Clothing Account
Fielding 18.6
Wearing 15.0
1st Wool

2 Establishment
 Carriage repair 6
 M. Goff Freestone 4/11/1852
 Schoolmistress - committee meeting - 2/11
 Withins Doyle - 10 roads Sam & } 5.00
 Carriage of same
 E. Kennedy, clerk, to pay assistants
 filling Rate Books } 5.00.0

Debit Establishment account and
 Credit Treasurer with the several
 sums as above
 3 Invoice account

Debit Invoice account and Credit
 Treasurer with the several sums as
 above
 Reported Electoral Division as to Carriage
 The report of the Master and other
 Officers were read and orders were
 made thereon as follows.
 Master reports there are 29 men prize
 of several pairs of jackets
 houses badly in want of repairs etc

The pump several prizes of jackets & desired wishes
 would not work some Members of the Board would inspect
 this morning & condemn some old clothing which
 had to employ might be cut up for the purpose of
 an apt to carry repairing them else to be used
 Water from the mill race to give out all the new clothing

The following letter from the Poor
 Law Commissioners and others were
 read by the clerk and directions
 given to answer them respectively
 to the following effect (or order)
 made on them respectively as follows
 one from the P.L. Commissioners
 requesting the clerk to perfect the
 last monthly return of the Union funds.

Provisional admissions into the
 workhouse and applications for
 admissions were considered and de-
 cided on as set forth in the
 application and report Book
 The number of provisional admissions
 Mr. J. Byrne's Motion with
 confirmed was 1
 Ditto disallowed none
 The number of applicants
 admitted was 20
 Ditto rejected 3

Mr. J. Byrne moved according
 to notice ^{which was as proposed by Mr. P. Whelan} that the committee be appointed
 to apportion the rates ~~on~~ the different
 Electoral Divisions. An amendment

was proposed by Mr. J. Goff & seconded by Mr. J. Bonners That the rates as ~~stated~~ and apportioned on the 27th of October last do stand good which being put by the Chairman was carried and the original motion lost.

The ~~Tender of Peter Cloney to supply Nets at 2/6 each~~ was accepted of and 200 ordered

The Committee appointed to take stock of provisions delivered in the following report, ^{in the warehouse} Stock of Provisions taken at 6 o'clock P.M. 9th December 1843

Candles	74 lbs	Bread	149 3/4 lbs
Soap	9 1/2 lbs	New Milk	20 gallons
Meat	3 lbs	Buttermilk	30 gal.
Eggs	3 doz	Potatoes	40 stone
Meal	24 stone	There were in addition	
		105 stone of potatoes	
		rec'd from the contractor	
		this day.	

The Chairman read Mr. O. Gallagher's report on the collection of the rate when it was resolved unanimously that the same be adopted by the Guardians and that the clerk be directed ~~by the Guardians~~ to enter on the Minutes in the rate columns the arrears as therein shown from the commencement of the rate.

It appearing by the report of Mr. Gallagher that the following sums are due by the Guardians

as received but not lodged with the Treasurer namely
 M. Doran £6. 19. 7 1/4 } D. Nolan 12. 0. 9 1/2
 M. Warren 12. 19. 0 1/2 } M. Doyle 11. 2. 8

It was moved by Mr. Goff seconded by Mr. Hill and resolved That the clerk do write to the several collectors above named that they must pay into the Treasurers hands the above amounts as due by each within fourteen days of this date and that they must also attach to the name of each Person returned by them as in arrear the reasons why they have not collected the rate due

Moved by Mr. Goff seconded by Mr. Hill and resolved That the Guardians of each Electoral Division with the Resident Ecc. Officers therein be appointed Committees to investigate the lists of the defaulters in the payment of the rate and to report to the Board the names and Amount of ^{arrears of those} rates which are ^{considered} recoverable and to be brought forward into the new Rate Books.

Ordered that the collector be paid A part say 2/3^{ds} of their poundage or paying up the Balance in their hands.

The assistant Commissioner directed the Valuator to enter the Revised Valuation of the ^{County} Union into the new form of ~~Rate~~ ^{Valuation} Books and to prepare the same with as little delay as possible.

Moved by Mr. C. Frumble Sec^y by Mr. Horn
Resolved that the sum of five pounds be voted
on the 17th November last for the purpose
of paying assistants in filling up the
rate and collectors Books not being
found sufficient resolved that a further
sum of five pounds be voted for that
purpose as the Books are wanted with
the greatest possible expedition

The clerk asked for ^{undelivered} orders for

- 1 Pint Ink
- 1 bag Vinegar
- 3 Dog steel pens
- 50 Rate Receipt Books
- Collectors Weekly Return Books
- 1000 ^{forms of} ~~blank~~ Invoice tags small
- 1 Ledger
- 30 Check Books on collectors
- 1 Day Book
- 1 Invoice Ledger
- 2 quire abstracts forms A and B
which were given to him.

The Master ^{was given} ~~got~~ orders for 107th this Sacking
32th lbs Best prepared Lard 7th lbs. Common
do. 20th 4th Shredding Calves, 3 Coffins
6 Black ^{chamber} ~~front~~. 2 Loads Straw

W. L. Goff
I give notice that on this day fortnight
I shall propose that the resolutions
proposed by D^r O'Rourke & Sec^y by
Capt^r Munn & passed on this day
week be rescinded -

The Taylor got an order for
Syr^y Calves & 1 Gro Strds.

The tender of J. Clones to supply Nets at 2^d each
was accepted of an 200 ordered.
~~The tender of L. Murphy to supply flannel
as sample at 9^d yard was~~

60 yds flannel was ordered from
L. Murphy as his sample at 9^d yd.

2 Piece of Linen each at 5th 4th 2^d
yard according to sample was
ordered from J. Cooke.

~~The~~ objection to his valuation was ^{sent to} ~~presented~~
by James Hayden of Dranagh
and referred to the Revisor.

The Board adjourned to Friday the
22nd ~~Day~~ Dec 1843 at 11 o'clock
AM

At A meeting held on Friday the
22nd Dec 1843

present in the Chair P. White Esq
J. Ponder, C. Frumble, J. Goff
P. Whelan, J. Connors, D^r O'Rourke.
G. R. Richards, J. ~~Steele~~, C. K. Cookman
J. Murphy.

The Minutes of last meeting were read
and signed

The Register Book was produced
examined and authenticated
from N^o 895 to N^o 923 both inclusive
by the signature of the Chairman
and the Countersignature of the
clerk

The clerk's report on the execution of orders previously made by the Board was read to the following effect. Executed the several orders of the Board given at last Meeting wishes to state that in the new collector's Books now filling there is no column headed Immediate Separation in rate books.

The Treasurer's Book of receipts and payments was produced by which it appeared that there had been received during the week - Nil paid during the week 5 £ and that the Balance against the Guardians 375-18-4

The Book was signed by the Chairman. The clerk's account of Petty disbursements since last Meeting made by him amounting to £5-16-0 was produced and passed.

The collector's books were produced and examined by which it appeared that there had been collected and paid to the Treasurer in respect of the several Electoral Divisions of the Union since the last Meeting and that there remained uncollected in the said Electoral Divisions respectively the sums specified as follows.

	Collector	uncollected
Mr. Doran	Emis corthy	16-15-3
	Ballyhogue	3-20-3 1/4
	Killow	4-12-7
	Killegary	2-17-3

	Collected	uncollected
Mr. Warren	Edermine	1-10-6 1/2
	Ballyhiskard	9-8-6 1/4
	Castle Ellis	2-15-11 1/2
	Meelrugh	3-18-9
D. Nolan	Ferns	8-3-1 1/2
	Kilrush	8-17-2 1/2
Mr. Doyle	Kilcummin	5-0-0 1/2
	Newtownbarry	10-1-7 1/2
	Templeshambo	6-4-3 1/4

The following Books were exhibited by the clerk. He having first ascertained the accuracy of the entries made therein by the Master of the workhouse and authenticated the same by his signature.

- 1 The Weekly relief list and abstract
 - 2 The Provision check account
 - 3 The Provision receipt & consumption account by which it appeared that the cost of Provisions and necessaries received during the week was £37-13-8 1/2
- Debit Provision account } 37-13-0 1/2
Credit Invoice account }
- The cost of Provisions and necessaries consumed was £29-19-3 1/4
- Debit Maintenance account } 29-19-3 1/4
Credit Provision account }
- and the average cost of a Pauper ~~that~~ for the week was — 1-8 1/2

The Master's estimate of provisions and necessaries required for the ensuing week was examined and orders were duly made for the several articles specified, namely:

576 lbs Bread	Sweet milk	927 qts
129 22 lbs Meat	Salt	112 lbs
1220 qts Potatoes	Sugar	3 1/2 lbs
Butter milk	Candles	30 lbs

The following books were also produced by the clerk their accuracy having been previously ascertained by him and authenticated by his signature

1 The several clothing accounts
2 The Medical Officers Books
on the report and recommendation of the Finance Committee the following bills having been duly examined and found to be correct and in accordance with the several orders were directed to be paid and cheques for the several amounts were duly drawn on the Treasurers and signed namely:

1 Clothing ^{Bedding} Account
Hans - J Douglas 12" 9

2 Establishment
Firewood D. Cliney 3" 0
Postage 3" 0
1 M^r. Salary P. Brier Taylor 18" 0
Chambers - M. Walsh 2" 0
Commuted Meat rations J. Stapleton 2" 11
Carriage off water Mr. Neill 17" 0
Ledger ^{dear} Thorne 17" 0
~~3~~ ~~Twice~~ spindles, for wheels. P. Lacy 1" 4
Linings Mr. Davis on a/c 1" 10" 0
Paving M. Row 1" 10" 0

The reports of the Master and other officers were read and orders were made thereon as follows
The Pump not giving up the water regularly 19 feet in the well last night the Contractor was called in and agreed to put it in order and the Board promised to pay him a first instalment upon his doing so.

The following letters from the P.L. Commissioners and others were read by the clerk and directions given to answer them respectively to the following effect. One from the P.L. Commissioners confirming the advance of the Porters salary to £15 per annum.

Provisional admissions into the workhouse and applications for admissions were considered and decided on as set forth in the application and Report Book
The number of Provisional admissions ~~admits~~ confirmed was ~~9~~ 9.
Ditto disallowed ~~1~~ 1
The number of applicants ~~1~~ admitted was 1
Ditto Rejected ~~1~~ 1

Ordered that ^{the} clerk advertise for tenders for Potatoes & Bed ticks

Proposed by Mr. Cookman seconded by Mr. Richards and resolved that a meat Dinner ~~is to be given~~ to the Paupers on Christmas day and that $\frac{3}{4}$ lbs of meat be the average for each person in the House, that vegetables be added thereto in cooking

Mr. C. Frimble gave notice that he would on the 29th inst. move that the clerk shall furnish the Board with a list ~~showing~~ ^{stating} the attendance of the Guardians of the several Divisions from the 25th March to the 29th Apr. and that the same be inserted in the Wexford papers

Ordered that the clerk be directed to furnish 4 copies of the ~~order~~ ^{order} of the Board of the 27th, with respect to tenders being advertised for to each Officer of the Workhouse.

Ordered that the clerk write to the different collectors requesting to know if they will collect ~~the new~~ ^{the new} Rates to continue in Office on the same terms as hitherto, and if they reply in the negative the clerk will advertise for tenders for new collectors.

Proposed by Mr. S. Goff seconded by Mr. B. Cookman & resolved that in names in which the master has

discharged his duties be taken into consideration by this Board on this day fortnight and that the clerk do communicate a copy of this resolution to the Guardians with the view of adopting on that day such resolution as they may think advisable after such investigation

The Master asked for
1 piece Blea 1 Stone Linseed Meal
Culiv. 6 lbs 12 Pair Shoe Brushes
Stocking worster 3 lbs Lamp Black
12 yds flannel 3 Razors & 2 Drops for shaving Paupers
48 tins to be soldered at 2 each
3 doz Death Brooms
Door & Bolts of Straw house to be repaired
2 Buckets for Mens Dormitory which were ordered
Moved by Mr. Cookman seconded by Mr. Richards & resolved that a meat dinner be given to the Paupers on Christmas day and that $\frac{3}{4}$ lbs of meat be the average for each Person in the House.

A cheque for £3. 7. 8 was given the clerk for Petty cash.

After the Chairman ^{signed} the several orders and cheques as decided on by the

At a meeting held on Friday the 29 of December 1843.

Present in the Chair, P. White Esq
other Guardians. C. H. Hill. D. Goff
J. Horle. P. Whelan. W. Colleton. J. Lamber
W. Ricarde. E. Trumble. N. Byrne
J. Byrne. M. Whelan. J. Horner
W. Roice, Cap. Nunn

The Minutes of last meeting were read and signed

The Register Book was produced examined and authenticated from N^o. 924 to N^o. 927 both inclusive by the signature of the Chairman and the countersignature of the Clerk

The Clerk's report on the execution of orders previously made by the Board was read to the following effect. Executed the several orders of the Board made given at last meeting. The collectors have not lodged the sums due by them as ordered by the Board's resolution of the 15th inst.

The Treasurers Book of receipts and payments was produced by which it appeared that there had been received during the week Nil

paid during the week £3.7.8 and that the Balance against the Guardians was £379.6.0
The Book was signed by the Chairman

The Clerk's account of petty disbursements made by him since last meeting amounting to £3.8.2 was produced and passed

The collectors Books were produced & examined by which it appeared that there had been collected and paid to the Treasurer in respect of the several divisions of the Union since the last meeting and that there remained uncollected in the said Electoral Divisions respectively the sums specified as follows

	Collected	Uncollected
M. Doran	Ennisconny	16.15.3
	Ballyhogue	3.0.3 $\frac{1}{4}$
	Killan	4.12.7
	Killeging	2.17.3
D. Nolan	Ferist Edernine	1.10.6 $\frac{1}{2}$
	Kilrush Ballyhuskard	9.8.6 $\frac{1}{4}$
	Kilcommock Castle Ellis	2.15.11 $\frac{1}{2}$
M. Warren	Edernine Meelagh	3.18.9
	Ballyhuskard Ferist	8.0.1
D. Nolan	Castle Ellis Kilrush	8.3.2
	Meelagh Kilcommock	2.12.2 $\frac{1}{2}$
	Wautown Barry	5.0.8 $\frac{1}{2}$
M. Doyle	Templeshambo	10.6.7 $\frac{1}{2}$
	Monart	6.4.3 $\frac{1}{4}$

Debit the Treasurer and Credit the several Electoral Divisions with the Am^{ts} above stated.

The following Books were exhibited by the Clerk he having first ascertained the accuracy of the entries made

therein by the Master of the workhouse
and authenticates same by his signature
- two

- 1 The Weekly relief List and abstract
- 2 The Provision Check account
- 3 The provision receipt & Humphreys
by which it appears that the cost of
provisions & necessaries received during
the week was £34" 3" 10½

Debit provision account } 34" 3" 10½
Credit ^{Survive} Maintenance account }

The cost of provisions and necessaries
consumed was £31" 3" 0½

Debit Maintenance account } 31" 3" 0½
Credit Provision account }
and the average cost of 4 Pauper for
the week was 1" 8½

The Masters estimate of provisions and
necessaries required for the ensuing week
was examined and orders were duly
made for the several articles specified
namely

Bread 648 lb	Potatoes	
Meat 38 lb	O. Meal	112 0
S. Milk 888 qt	Candles	30 lb
Buttermilk 131 1/2 qt	Soap	112 lb

The following Books were also produced
by the Clerk their accuracy having
been previously ascertained by him and
authenticated by his signature

- 1 The several Clothing accounts
- 2 The Medical Officers Books

on the report and recommendation
of the Finance committee the following
Bills having been duly examined and found
to be correct and in accordance with
the several orders were directed to be
paid and cheques for the several
amounts were duly drawn on the
Treasury and signed namely

1 Clothing Account
Shoemaker below 12 days at 3/- ^{special agreement} 1" 16" 9
W. H. W. Pounder &c 1" 11" 1

Debit Clothing & Credit Treasury
with the several sums as above.

2 Establishment Account
2 Annuities Lock 1" 0
~~Consumed Meat Rations~~
~~2 week ending 23 & 30th inst~~ ~~5" 10~~
~~Postages~~ " ~~2 1/4~~

Debit Establishment account
and Credit Treasury with the
several sums as above
3 Survive account
~~Union Turnips & Apples~~ ~~Refuted~~ ~~2" 8~~

Debit Survive account and Credit
Treasury with the several sums
as above

~~The report of the visiting committee was read and orders made thereon as follows~~

The reports of the Master and other Officers were read and orders made thereon as follows. The Potatoes from the Garden are apportioned and the large ^{quantity} ~~fit~~ for use this quantity turns out to be 493 stone say about one weeks supply. ^{that is} purchased from Mr. Pounder. Load very dry straw @ 1/3. He had more but will expect 1/6 per cent. There are but four spare bed ticks in the house.

The following letters from the P.L. Com^{rs} and others were read by the clerk and directions given to answer them respectively to the following effect (or orders made on them respectively as follows) One from the P.L. Commissioners requesting info to know if the collector consents to collect in future and if not that the collection be offered to the Barony Cess Collectors.

Provisional admissions into the workhouse and applications for admissions were considered and decided on as set forth in the application and report Book

The number of provisional admissions confirmed was 3

Ditto disallowed None

The number of applicants admitted was 16

Ditto rejected 2

Resolved That the clerk do write to the Guardians to request their attendance on Friday next to take into consideration the letter this day rec^d. by the Board from the Chairman of the Land Commission wherein he calls the attention of this Board to the necessity of affording their assistance to the Commission by giving them such information as may lead to a full & fair investigation of all circumstances connected with the tenure and occupation of Land in Ireland.

Proposed by Mr. Fumble seconded by Mr. Whelan and resolved. That we deem it necessary that the attendance of the Guardians of this Union be published in the two Newfor Papers with the view that the rate payers may see how they are represented.

Mr. Goff postponed his Motion of which he gave notice on this day fortnight concerning the Supper of Bread & Milk to Washerwomen.

In accordance with ^A the Resolution of ~~that day~~ ^{the 15th inst} ~~fortnight~~ several Guardians examined the Collectors lists of arrears ^{on their respective} ~~of each~~ divisions but many lists remaining unexamined the Clerk stated his inability to complete the ^{writing of} new Rate Book until the lists were regularly examined. The Book being now finished ~~unless~~ ^{in so far as} ~~the matter of~~ ^{the matter of} ~~in arrears~~ ^{in arrears}.

The Accountant employed by

The Clerk asked for
1 quire blotting paper
50 Postage Stamps
which were ordered

The Master asked for
No 1. 2. 7th Strain
2 Bal. Lime
1 large & 1 small Saw & an order for
repairs on 1d.
1 stone of wool & carding of same
3 lbs housewife thread
100 sorted needles
3 doz Thimbles
which were ordered.

Mrs Pilkington hospital nurse
asked for £2. 2. 2 being 11 weeks
services at 3/10 ^{including 1/6 the inst} ~~per week~~ which was
ordered and a cheque given her
for that amt.

The Clerk recd. A draft for £3. 8. 1
for Petty Cash—

The Collectors ~~having~~ ^{being} attended and
Moses Doyle ~~stated~~ ^{reported} ~~he was to not collect~~
the new Rate. — The remaining
Collectors stated they would not ~~continue~~
collect in future unless the Poorndage
allowed them ^{was advanced to 10 or}
11- in the pound ^{they then retired when} — It was moved by
Mr. Goff. Seconded by Mr. W. Rice and
resolved that Eight pence & pence
sterling be allowed to the Collectors for
all moneys collected by them
^{on the new Rate}

having been again called in
of The collectors consented to accept
the Divisions where collection was that rate of remuneration ~~and~~
giving up by * Monart was added to Parby the
the late collector's District of Mr. Doran & I handed
(Mr. M. Doyle) R. J. Barry & Templeshambo were
one namely added to the collection District
of Parby Volow, and Apant
of D. Volows former collection
District namely the Division of
Rilecommok was added to the
collection District of W. Warren.